REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 6:30 PM, Monday, April 10th, 2023 MARTIN MEMORIAL HALL, ASCUTNEY VERMONT 5459 Rt 5

DRAFT MINUTES

Members in attendance:

Paul Tillman Howard Beach Michael Todd Joseph Bublat David (Hank) Ainley

Ryan Gumbart – Land Use Administrator

Members Not in attendance:

Attendees:

Brian Bosenberg Ken Blum Rilia Henderson

Online Attendees:

None

- 1. Meeting was called to order by **Paul Tillman** at 6:30 P.M.
- 2. Agenda Review No changes.
- 3. Comments from the Chair and land Use Administrator No comments either the Chair or the LUA.
- 4. Comment from citizens regarding items not on the agenda No comments from Citizens.
- 5. Approval of meeting minutes March 27, 2023 Discussion The minutes were not included in the packet.

Paul Tillman tabled these minutes until the next meeting.

- 6. Public Hearing Town Plan Amendment Energy Section: No update rev 8 03.08.2023
- 7. Bylaws PUD Review Section: No update Rev 5 02.22.2023
- 8. Helipads, Airstrips, and Airports: Information and inquiry from MARC Ryan presented the information from the Transportation Board as seen in Appendix A. Ryan said that MARC had asked if the Town had any pans for discussion on this subject. Discussion was had about reaching out the Springfield airport again for input as to their future plans for that airport.
- 9. Vermont Planners Association Legislative Report 04.04.2023 Ryan presented the Planning Association' Legislative report as seen in Appendix B.
- 10. Discussion of items for future agendas C10 will be added to the agenda for future discussion.
- 11. Any other business that can be legally discussed Mike Todd asked to have the Covid-19 information removed from the agenda legend at the bottom to help with any confusion this may have on meeting attendance.
- 12. Adjourn Meeting adjourned at 7:46 P.M.

Howard Beach made a motion to adjourn at 7:46 P.M. Seconded by Joseph Bublat, Motion Passed 5-0

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Planning Commission will be Monday, April 24, 2023 - 6:30 PM, Martin Memorial Hall.

Respectably submitted by, Chauncie Tillman

Appendix A





February 10, 2021

Re: Permitting Helipads and Airstrips

Dear Municipal Manager & Planning Commissioner:

The Vermont Transportation Board serves as the state permitting authority for airports and restricted landing areas. Restricted landing areas include private helipads and airstrips but do not include regulation of drones. Over the last few years, the Board has seen a significant increase in applications for private helipads and airstrips, often serving a single home in an existing subdivision or neighborhood. These private facilities can dramatically change the character of an area and can have negative impacts while providing a private benefit to few.

The State, as part of its permit process, requires that a proposed helipad or airstrip first receive municipal approval. But in the vast majority of cases that come before the Board, the host city or town has no regulatory mechanism to review such applications. In these cases, court guidance tells us the State must accept the application and proceed as if municipal approval has been granted. While this allows the application to proceed, it essentially shorts the permit process because the Transportation Board has no authority to review land use. This means that private helipads and airstrips often gain approval without any kind of local process that determines whether the proposed location is compatible with the surrounding area.

In short, the State's permitting process for a helipad or airstrip is designed to have three review components: 1) the local municipality reviews land use, 2) the State reviews ground-related safety to determine if aircraft can take-off and land safely, and 3) the U.S Government reviews the airspace to ensure safety once the aircraft is airborne. Given this regulatory structure, if the host municipality has no policy language in its adopted plan or no established regulatory mechanism, such as zoning bylaws that deal with aviation or a stand-alone municipal bylaw that deals with aviation, land-use issues and neighborhood concerns go unchecked.

Realizing this, the Board convened a committee comprised of municipal planers, regional planners, VTrans staff and a representative of the Vermont League of Cities and Towns to develop guidelines to help municipalities understand what they can do to establish a local, regulatory mechanism that deals with helipads and airstrips should one be proposed within your municipality.

The committee, as well as the Transportation Board, encourages all Vermont cities and towns to consider adopting municipal plan policies and/or bylaws regarding aviation facilities as recent history shows that applications for private helipads and airstrips are increasing. Vermont is regularly seeing

TRANSPORTATION BOARD * 14 BALDWIN STREET * MONTPELIER, VT 05602 * TEL: (802) 828-2942 * FAX (802) 828-2660





applications all across the state, and often for locations within or close to village settings or in existing residential neighborhoods in rural communities.

What follows are some suggestions on what to consider should your community wish to better prepare itself for such an application. Transportation Board Executive Secretary John Zicconi is willing to meet with any town (municipal manager, selectboard, planning commission, etc.) to discuss this issue further. Inquiries can be made directly to him at 802-343-7280 or at john.zicconi@vermont.gov.

MUNICIPAL PLANS

Municipal plans establish the policy basis for zoning bylaws, but they also have regulatory effect in state permitting processes, such as Act 250 (land use) and Section 248 (energy generation and transmission). Including explicit, prescriptive policy language in the municipal plan about where private helipads and airstrips are and are not allowed establishes a policy basis for municipal approval. Prescriptive policy language uses words such as will and must as opposed to more passive words such as consider, should, support, and encourage. If a municipality uses a municipal plan to either approve or deny a helipad or airstrip, the Transportation Board requires a letter from the municipality explaining its decision with reference to the section of the municipal plan used.

ZONING BYLAWS & ORDINANCES

Many Vermont towns have zoning, but not all zoning regulations capture helipads and airstrips. The Transportation Board encourages municipalities to review their zoning regulations to determine if they cover private aviation facilities which can be proposed in residential as well as commercial districts. Detailed zoning regulations may take the following tools into account.

Setbacks – establish a minimum for helipads and airstrips, which may vary depending on the zoning district. There is no magic number of feet a setback should be.

Lot Size – there is no common or recommended lot size. Helicopters can land in very small spaces. Appropriate lot sizes also may vary by type of zoning district as one size may be appropriate for a commercial district while a different minimum size may be more appropriate for a residential district. For airstrips, the U.S. Government sets minimum runway lengths necessary depending on the class of aircraft to be flown.

Noise – federal law prohibits states or municipalities from considering or regulating aircraft noise. Aircraft noise is the sole domain of the federal government. However, municipalities can regulate land uses and the character of an area so long as they are not used as a proxy for limiting aircraft noise.





For example, courts have held that regulating hours of an airport's operation is a proxy for regulating aircraft noise.

Permitted Use – if a community wishes to allow helipads and airstrips they can be allowed in some or all zoning districts.

Conditional Use – can address the character of the area, performance standards, and land uses so long as they are not a proxy for noise.

Accessory Use – helipads and airstrips can be allowed as incidental or subordinate uses to the property's primary use.

Prohibited Use – municipalities with proper regulatory tools can prohibit helipads and airstrips throughout town, or they can prohibit them only from specific areas of town or within specific zoning districts.

Exemptions – zoning can prohibit helipads and airstrips but also exempt certain aviation uses – such as crop dusting and insect control – from needing a local permit. The State and the U.S. Government may still be required to review such uses, but municipalities if they wish can exempt specific uses from needing local approval. None of this, however, would prohibit an aircraft that must land due to an emergency as federal law for safety purposes allows that to occur anywhere necessary.

Screening & Visual Impact — while planting trees and shrubs to screen certain development is commonplace within zoning, keep in mind that aircraft require specific glideslopes with specific ground-to-air clearance ratios (helicopters require an 8-to-1 horizontal to vertical clearance) to land and takeoff safely. Thus, trees or other structures cannot be placed too close to the actual landing facility. Also, zoning can establish how aircraft can be parked and other associated visual parameters.

Surface Type – certain aircraft can land on almost any kind of surface. Some towns require helipads to be paved and maintained free from dust, dirt and other loose material that could be blown onto adjoining properties by the air wash.

Runway Length – while helicopters can land in very small spaces – including on top of buildings – specific class of airplanes require specific runway lengths. As a result, zoning must understand what type of aircraft class is acceptable and then ensure the regulations allow for proper runway length.

Additional Permitting – Vermont statute requires that municipal approval be obtained <u>prior</u> to applying for a State Aviation permit, so local regulations should not require State approval be obtained

TRANSPORTATION BOARD * 14 BALDWIN STREET * MONTPELIER VT 05602 * TEL: (802) 828-2942 * FAX: (802) 828-2660





first. Local regulations can, however, require that obtaining a State Certificate of Operation is required prior to the commencement of local flights.

STAND-ALONE MUNICIPAL BYLAW

Municipalities that do not have zoning can still regulate helipads and airstrips. Statutes allow for a standalong bylaw under Title 24 Chapter 117. As another option, statute allows for an ordinance under Title 24 Chapter 59. The above zoning guidelines also can be used to help guide communities wishing to establish such bylaws or ordinances.

QUESTIONS

In closing, the Transportation Board emphasizes that its executive secretary is happy to answer any questions you may have regarding helipads and airstrips, and is willing to meet with your local planning commission, selectboard or whatever other entity is responsible for drafting local zoning regulations and municipal ordinances. The Board has seen many examples of Vermont communities being caught off guard when application for a Restricted Landing Area is made and witnessed the shock local residents have when they learn the municipality has no way to determine for itself if such a facility is appropriate for their community.

As a result, the Board encourages all Vermont communities to discuss this issue and decide if its local permitting processes is adequate when it comes to siting helipads and airstrips. The Board hopes you find the enclosed information helpful, and it is happy to assist any city or town to help it better understand the issue.

Sincerely,

John B. Zicconi

Executive Secretary, Vermont Transportation Board

Appendix B

Vermont Planners Association (VPA) Legislative Report – April 4, 2023

Reported by Alex Weinhagen, Kati Gallagher, Kerry Brosnan, and Darren Schibler

We are still waiting for the crossover dust to settle, and updates to the Legislature's website to reflect bills that passed. Discussions will continue on key bills moving from one chamber to committees in the other chamber – e.g., S.5, S.100, H.126, etc.

No new bills with a planning nexus were introduced.

Updates on planning bills

S.100 - Omnibus Housing Bill – This bill passed the full Senate on Friday (3/31) with a few amendments. We are still waiting for the version as passed to be published on the Legislature's website. Some problematic provisions related to municipal zoning pre-emption (e.g., parking minimums, residential density minimums) are still in the bill, so it will be important for planners to engage with their legislators and key committees on the House side to recommend revisions. The bill appears to be landing first in the House Committee on General and Housing. They will get an introduction to the bill on Tuesday (4/4), with substantive discussion and testimony to follow next week or thereafter. This is likely to be the committee most receptive to the concerns VPA and individual planners have raised. Once the bill makes it through this committee, it will likely head to the House Committee on Environment and Energy.

- S.115 Misc. Ag & Stormwater Provisions This bill is scheduled for a third reading and final vote in the Senate on Tuesday (4/4). As reported las week, this bill includes a provision to exempt agricultural operations from regulation and fees by municipal stormwater utilities with the intent of better aligning with statutory limits as interpreted by the Agency of Agriculture. After concerns were raised by several municipal officials, the problematic sections were amended to study the issue and report back on necessary solutions by the end of the year, so that action can be taken in 2024 if necessary.
- S.5 Affordable Heat Act As reported last week, this bill passed the Senate on March 3, and is now being considered by the House Environment and Energy Committee. The committee has a full week of testimony and discussion planned for this week.
- H.126 Biodiversity & Conservation As reported last week, after some amendments, this bill was approved by the full House on 3/24, and now is now waiting to be taken up by the Senate Natural Resources & Energy Committee.
- H.276 Rental Registry Study This greatly revised bill passed the House on Thursday (3/30), and is now awaiting consideration by the Senate Committee on Economic Development, Housing, and General Affairs. VPA will be submitting a letter of support for the rental registry concept, in the hopes that it can actually be enacted in 2024. As reported last week, this is now a study bill. The study would assess cost, design, and implementation of a registry and consider the different possible ways to do it. Two frameworks were laid out to be explored; one using an existing framework with landlord certificate and

associated data and one using a new framework for an annual registration requirement for long term and short term rental housing. The report will be due Dec 15th, 2023.

H.222 – Reducing Overdoses / Recovery Residences – This bill passed the House on Wednesday (3/29), and is now awaiting consideration by the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare. As reported last week, one portion of this bill would require municipalities permit recovery residences as a single-family dwelling, similar to residential care homes and group homes. H.222 includes extensive details on how recovery residences would operate internally, which has evolved over the past few sessions. It was amended to include the definition of "recovery residence" that was part of H.241.

H.31 – Aquatic Nuisance Control – This bill passed the House on Wednesday (3/29), and is now awaiting consideration by the Senate Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. As previously reported, this bill creates a study committee to look into the use of pesticides for the control of aquatic nuisances (e.g., Eurasian water milfoil).

Online Resources

Bill, Act and Resolution search page, past VPA Legislative Reports, upcoming House / Senate Committee Meetings, and the weekly VLCT legislative report.